UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

oxtimes QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2025

	OR	
☐ TRANSITION REPORT PU	URSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIE	ES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
	For the transition period from to	
	Commission file number: 001-40582	
	UNICYCIVE THERAPEUTICS, INC. (Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)	
Delaware	2834	81-3638692
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)	(Primary Standard Industrial Classification Code Number)	(I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
	4300 El Camino Real, Suite 210 Los Altos, CA 94022 (650) 351-4495 (Address and telephone number of principal executive offices)	
(Former 1	Not applicable name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since la	st report)
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Yes \square No	filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or Section 13 registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been sul mitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be	bject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
	(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to sub	
	ge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer "accelerated filer", "smaller reporting company", and "emergin	
Large accelerated filer □ Non-accelerated filer □	Accelerated filer Smaller reporting company Emerging growth company	
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a)	k if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition of the Exchange Act \square	period for complying with any new or revised financial
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell of	company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). ☐ Yes ⊠ No	
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Ac	t:	
Title of each class	Trading Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share	UNCY	The NASDAQ Stock Market, LLC
As of May 14, 2025, there were 120,629,281 shares of the	he Company's common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, issued	and outstanding.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page No.
PART I – FINA	NCIAL INFORMATION	
ITEM 1.	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	1
	Balance Sheets – As of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 (unaudited)	1
	Statements of Operations (Unaudited) – Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2025	2
	Statements of Mezzanine Equity and Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity (Unaudited) – Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2025	3
	Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) – Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2025	4
	Notes to Financial Statements (Unaudited)	5
ITEM 2.	MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	29
ITEM 3.	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK	37
ITEM 4.	CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES	37
PART II – OTH	IER INFORMATION	
ITEM 1.	LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	38
ITEM 1A.	RISK FACTORS	38
ITEM 2.	UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS	38
ITEM 3.	DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES	38
ITEM 4.	MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES	38
ITEM 5.	OTHER INFORMATION	38
ITEM 6.	EXHIBITS	38
<u>SIGNATURES</u>		39

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unicycive Therapeutics, Inc.

Balance Sheets (In thousands, except for share and per share amounts)

	Dec	As of December 31, 2024		As of March 31, 2025
Assets			(-	,
Current assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	26,142	\$	19,769
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		4,806		7,577
Total current assets		30,948		27,346
Right of use asset, net		645		518
Property, plant and equipment, net		75		83
Total assets	\$	31,668	\$	27,947
Liabilities and stockholders' equity				
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable	\$	1,058	\$	1,397
Accrued liabilities		3,562		4,143
Warrant liability		18,936		10,588
Operating lease liability - current		564		548
Total current liabilities		24,120		16,676
Operating lease liability – long term		117		_
Total liabilities		24,237		16,676
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)		,		
Stockholders' equity:				
Series A-2 Prime preferred stock, \$0.001 par value per share – 21,338.01 Series A-2 Prime shares authorized at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025; 6,150.21 and 5,464.21 Series A-2 Prime shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, respectively		_		
Series B-2 preferred stock, \$0.001 par value per share – 7,882 Series B-2 shares authorized at December 31, 2024 and March 31,				
2025; 3,000 Series B-2 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025		-		-
Preferred stock: \$0.001 par value per share — 9,846,891 shares authorized at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025; zero shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025		-		_
Common stock, \$0.001 par value per share – 400,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025; 113,842,364 and 119,749,743 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, respectively		114		120
Additional paid-in capital		108,587		111,851
Accumulated deficit		(101,270)		(100,700)
Total stockholders' equity		7,431		11,271
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	•	31,668	Φ.	27,947
Total habilities and stockholders equity	Þ	31,008	Φ	41,741

Statements of Operations (In thousands, except for share and per share amounts) (Unaudited)

		onths Ended rch 31,
	2024	2025
Operating expenses:	0 (012	0.171
Research and development General and administrative	\$ 6,813	
	2,391	5,818
Total operating expenses	9,204	7,989
Loss from operations	(9,204)	(7,989)
Other income (expenses): Interest income	69	226
	(20)	226 (15)
Interest expense Change in fair value of warrant liability	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	,
· ·	(11,808)	
Total other income (expenses)	(11,759)	
Net (loss) income	(20,963)	570
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders, basic Net loss attributable to common stockholders, diluted	(21,171)	
Net (loss) income per share:	(21,171)	(0,214)
Basic	\$ (0.61)	-
Diluted	\$ (0.61)	\$ (0.05)
Weighted-average shares outstanding:		
Basic	34,912,692	116,818,811
Diluted	34,912,692	123,834,773

Statements of Mezzanine Equity and Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity (In thousands, except share amounts) (Unaudited)

		es B-1 ed Stock	Commoi	ı Stock		es A-2 ed Stock	Series A- Preferre		Additional Paid-In	Accumulated	Stockholders'
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Capital	Deficit	Deficit
Balance at December 31, 2023		\$ -	34,756,049	\$ 35	43,649	\$ -	-	\$ -	\$ 60,697	\$ (64,541)	\$ (3,809)
Net loss	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		(20,963)	(20,963)
Issuance of Series B-1 preferred stock, net of issuance costs	50,000	46,187	-	-	-	-	-	-			-
Dividends on Series B-1 preferred stock	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	(208	3) -	(208)
Exchange of Series A-2 preferred stock for Series A-2 Prime preferred stock	_		-	-	(43,649)	<u>-</u>	21,388.01	-			-
Conversion of Series A-2 Prime preferred stock into common stock	-	-	2,850,000	2	-	-	(1,396.50)	_	(2	2) -	_
Issuance of common stock for exercise of options	-	-	581	-	-	-	-	-	2		2
Stock-based compensation expense			_						522	!	522
Balance at March 31, 2024	50,000	\$ 46,187	37,606,630	\$ 37		\$ -	19,991.51	\$ -	\$ 61,011	\$ (85,504)	\$ (24,456)

			Series A	-2 Prime	Serie	s B-2	Additional		
	Common	n Stock	Preferr	ed Stock	Preferre	ed Stock	Paid-In	Accumulated	Stockholder's
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Capital	Deficit	Equity
Balance at December 31, 2024	113,842,364	\$ 11-	6,150.21	\$ -	3,000	\$ -	\$ 108,587	\$ (101,270)	\$ 7,431
Net income	-			-	-	-	-	570	570
Conversion of Series A-2 Prime preferred stock									
into common stock	1,400,000		1 (686)) -	-	-	-	-	1
Issuance of common stock for cash, net of									
issuance costs	4,507,379		5 -	-	-	-	2,701	-	2,706
Stock-based compensation expense	-			=	-	-	563	-	563
Balance at March 31, 2025	119,749,743	\$ 12	5,464.21	\$ -	3,000	\$ -	\$ 111,851	\$ (100,700)	\$ 11,271

Statements of Cash Flows (In thousands) (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended

		March 31,		
		2024		2025
Cash flows from operating activities				
Net (loss) income	\$	(20,963)	\$	570
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:				
Depreciation expense		9		8
Stock-based compensation expense		522		563
Change in fair value of warrant liability		11,808		(8,348)
Amortization of operating lease right of use asset		275		127
Changes in assets and liabilities:				
Prepaid expense and other current assets		1,344		(2,481)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities		822		791
Operating lease liability		(273)		(133)
Net cash used in operating activities		(6,456)		(8,903)
Cash flows from investing activities				
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment		(6)		(16)
Net cash used in investing activities		(6)		(16)
Cash flows from financing activities		<u> </u>		
Payments on financed insurance policies		(496)		(160)
Issuance costs related to issuance of Series B-1 preferred stock		(3,813)		-
Proceeds from issuance of Series B-1 preferred stock		50,000		-
Commissions paid on secondary public offering		-		(84)
Proceeds from secondary public offering		-		2,790
Net cash provided by financing activities		45,691		2,546
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		39,229		(6,373)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period		9,701		26,142
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period	\$	48,930	\$	19,769
Supplemental cash flow information	_			
Accrued dividends on preferred stock	\$	208	\$	-
Deferred insurance charges included in prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$	146	\$	142
Deferred preclinical and other charges included in prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$	86	\$	290
Cash paid for interest	\$	5		6
Cash paid for income taxes	\$	-	\$	-

Notes to the Financial Statements (Unaudited)

1. Organization and Description of Business

Overview

Unicycive Therapeutics, Inc. ("the Company") was incorporated in the State of Delaware on August 18, 2016. The Company was dormant until July 2017 when it began evaluating several drug candidates for in-licensing.

The Company in-licensed the drug candidate UNI 494 from Sphaera Pharma Pte. Ltd, a Singapore-based corporation, ("Sphaera") (Note 3). UNI 494 is a pro-drug of Nicorandill that is being developed as a treatment for acute kidney injury.

In September 2018, the Company purchased a second drug candidate, Renazorb RZB 012 and its trademark, RENALAN, and various patents from Spectrum Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Spectrum") (Note 3). Renazorb ("Oxylanthanum Carbonate") is being developed for the treatment of hyperphosphatemia in patients with Chronic Kidney Disease ("CKD").

The Company continues to evaluate the licensing of additional technologies and drugs, targeting orphan diseases and other renal, liver and other metabolic diseases affecting fibrosis and inflammation.

Liquidity

The Company is subject to risks and uncertainties common to early-stage companies in the biotechnology industry including, but not limited to, development by competitors of new technological innovations, protection of proprietary technology, dependence on key personnel, compliance with governmental regulations and the need to obtain additional financing to fund operations. The Company's product candidates currently under development will require significant additional research and development efforts prior to commercialization. Future revenue streams may consist of collaboration or licensing revenue as well as product sales.

The Company has incurred operating losses and negative cash flows from operations since inception and expects to continue to incur negative cash flows from operations in the future. As the Company continues its research and development activities, the operating losses are expected to increase. The Company has historically relied on equity offerings, debt financing and loans from a stockholder to fund its operations. As of December 31, 2024, and March 31, 2025, the Company had an accumulated deficit of \$101.3 million and \$100.7 million, respectively.

In connection with its initial public offering ("IPO"), on July 13, 2021, the Company began trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "UNCY", and on July 15, 2021, received approximately \$22.3 million in net proceeds after deducting the underwriting discounts, commissions and other offering expenses. The Company has used the net proceeds from the IPO to complete pre-clinical and clinical studies, prepare regulatory filings for the FDA, and for general and corporate purposes, including hiring additional management and conducting market research and other commercial planning.

On March 3, 2023, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain healthcare-focused institutional investors that may provide up to \$130.0 million in gross proceeds through a private placement and that included initial upfront funding of \$28.0 million in net proceeds.

On March 13, 2024, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain healthcare-focused institutional investors to provide \$50.0 million in gross proceeds through a private placement. Pursuant to the securities purchase agreement, the Company issued institutional purchasers \$50.0 million in shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. The Company received \$46.2 million in net proceeds.

On November 13, 2024, the Company entered into a sales agreement, with Guggenheim Securities, LLC pursuant to which, the Company may offer and sell shares of common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$50.0 million, subject to certain limitations and in accordance with the terms of the sales agreement, from time to time through or to Guggenheim Securities, acting as sales agent or principal. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the Company sold 4,507,379 shares of common stock at an average price of \$0.62 per share and paid \$84,000 in commissions, resulting in net proceeds to the Company of approximately \$2.7 million.

The Company expects to continue incurring losses in the future and will be required to raise additional capital in the future to complete its planned clinical trials, pursue product development initiatives and penetrate markets for the sale of its products. Management believes that the Company will continue to have access to capital resources through possible equity offerings, debt financing, corporate collaborations, or other means. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain additional financing on terms acceptable to the Company, on a timely basis or at all. If the Company is unable to secure additional capital, it may be required to curtail any clinical trials and development of new or existing products and take additional measures to reduce expenses in order to conserve its cash in amounts sufficient to sustain operations and meet its obligations. Based on the Company's currently anticipated level of expenditures, the Company believes that current available cash will not be sufficient to fund planned expenditures and meet obligations through the end of the first quarter of 2026, and there is substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that these financial statements are available to be issued.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP").

The accompanying unaudited financial statements of the Company as of March 31, 2025 have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and, accordingly, they do not include all information and footnote disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.. The Company believes the footnotes and other disclosures made in the financial statements are adequate for a fair presentation of the results of the interim periods presented. The financial statements include all adjustments (solely of a normal recurring nature) which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to make the information presented not misleading. You should read these financial statements and the accompanying notes in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31, 2025.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the periods presented. Management believes that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable; however, actual results may differ and could have a material effect on future results of operations and financial position. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include, stock-based compensation, research contract progress estimates, incremental borrowing rate for leases, useful life for assets, debt and equity transactions, and the valuation of warrant liabilities. Actual results may materially differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606"). The Company applies the five-step model in ASC 606 and recognizes revenue from product sales or services rendered when control of the promised goods or services are transferred to a counterparty in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. To achieve this core principle, the Company applies the following five steps: identify the contract with the client, identify the performance obligations in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract and recognize revenues when or as the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Warrant Liability

In conjunction with the issuance of Series A-1 Preferred Stock (see Note 8), the Company established a warrant liability as of March 3, 2023, representing the fair value of warrants that may be issued (and have since been issued – see Note 10), subject to shareholder approval, upon conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock. The Company accounts for these warrants as liabilities (in accordance with ASC 480, *Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity*) on the balance sheets as a result of certain redemption clauses that are not within the control of the Company. The warrant liability was initially measured at fair value and is remeasured at fair value each reporting period. Changes in the fair value of the warrant liability are recognized in earnings during each period. The warrant liability is measured using Level 3 fair value inputs. See Note 10 for a description of warrant liability and the related valuations.

Segment Information

The Company reports its segment information to reflect the manner in which the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") reviews and assesses performance. The Company's Chief Executive Officer has the responsibility as the CODM to review and assess the performance of the Company as a whole.

The primary financial measures used by the CODM to evaluate performance and allocate resources are net (loss) income and operating (loss) income. The CODM uses net income (loss) and operating (loss) income to evaluate the performance of the Company's ongoing operations and as part of the Company's internal planning and forecasting processes. Information on net (loss) income and operating (loss) income is disclosed in the Statements of Operations. Segment expenses and other segment items are provided to the CODM on the same basis as disclosed in the Statements of Operations.

The CODM does not evaluate performance or allocate resources based on segment assets, and therefore such information is not presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company operates in a dynamic and highly competitive industry and believes that changes in any of the following areas could have a material adverse effect on the Company's future financial position, results of operations, or cash flows: ability to obtain future financing; advances and trends in new technologies and industry standards; results of clinical trials; regulatory approval and market acceptance of the Company's products; development of sales channels; certain strategic relationships; litigation or claims against the Company related to intellectual property, product, regulatory, or other matters; and the Company's ability to attract and retain employees necessary to support its growth.

The Company's general business strategy may be adversely affected by any such economic volatile business environments and continued unstable or unpredictable economic and market conditions.

Any product candidates developed by the Company will require approvals from the FDA or other international regulatory agencies prior to commercial sales. There can be no assurance that the Company's current product candidates or any future product candidates will receive the necessary approvals. If the Company is denied approval, approval is delayed or the Company is unable to maintain approval, it could have a materially adverse impact on the Company.

The Company has expended and will continue to expend substantial funds to complete the research, development and clinical testing of its product candidates. The Company also will be required to expend additional funds to establish commercial-scale manufacturing arrangements and to provide for the marketing and distribution of products that receive regulatory approval. The Company will require additional funds to commercialize its products. The Company is unable to entirely fund these efforts with its current financial resources. If adequate funds are unavailable on a timely basis from operations or additional sources of financing, the Company may have to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of its research or development programs, which would materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition and operations.

The Company is dependent upon the services of its employees, consultants and other third parties.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Additions, improvements, and major renewals or replacements that substantially extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the remaining lease term.

Management assesses the carrying value of property and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If there is indication of impairment, management prepares an estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to write down the asset to its estimated fair value at that time. During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2025, management determined there were no impairments of the Company's property, plant and equipment.

Leases

The Company determines whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception. Right-of-use assets represent the Company's right to use an underlying asset during the lease term, and lease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. The Company records the right-of-use asset at the amount of the lease liability plus any prepaid rent, amounts paid for lessor-owned leasehold improvements, and initial direct costs, less any lease incentives and accrued rent. Lease liabilities are recognized at lease commencement based upon the estimated present value of unpaid lease payments over the lease term. The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at lease commencement in determining the present value of unpaid lease payments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments include the warrant liability, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received for sale of an asset or paid for transfer of a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. U.S. GAAP. establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy contains the following levels:

- Level 1 defined as observable inputs based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;
- Level 2 defined as inputs other than Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and
- Level 3 defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists where valuations are derived from techniques in which one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

The fair value of the warrant liability is determined using a Black Scholes model with parameters including (i) the exercise price of the warrants, (ii) the price of the underlying security, (iii) the time to expiration, or expected term, (iv) the expected volatility of the underlying security, (v) the risk-free rate, and (vi) estimated probability assumptions surrounding the achievement by the Company of technical milestones associated with regulatory and commercial progress.

These valuation techniques involve management's estimates and judgment based on unobservable inputs and are classified in Level 3. The fair value estimates may not be indicative of the amounts that would be realized in a market exchange. Additionally, there may be inherent uncertainties or changes in the underlying assumptions used, which could significantly affect the current or future fair value estimates. Generally, a significant increase (decrease) in the probabilities of shareholder approval and the achievement of technical milestones would have resulted in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement; however, changes in other inputs such as expected term and price of the underlying common stock will have a directionally opposite impact on fair value measurement.

The following table summarizes the fair value hierarchy of financial liabilities measured at fair value as of March 31, 2025 (in thousands):

	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)	Total
Warrant liability	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 10,588	\$ 10,588
Total liabilities at fair value	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 10,588	\$ 10,588

The following table summarizes the fair value hierarchy of financial liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2024 (in thousands):

	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)	Total
Warrant liability	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 18,936	\$ 18,936
Total liabilities at fair value	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 18,936	\$ 18,936

The following table summarizes the changes in fair value of the warrant liability classified in Level 3. Gains and losses reported in this table include changes in fair value that are attributable to unobservable inputs (in thousands):

	Three Months Ended March 31, 2024
Fair value at December 31, 2023	13,133
Change in fair value of warrants	11,808
Fair value at March 31, 2024	\$ 24,941
	Three Months Ended March 31, 2025
Fair value at December 31, 2024	18,936
Change in fair value of warrants	(8,348)
Fair value at March 31, 2025	\$ 10,588

The income (expense) relating to the change in fair value of the warrant liability of (\$11.8) million and \$8.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 respectively is included in other income (expense) in the statements of operations.

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures requires all entities to disclose the fair value of financial instruments, both assets and liabilities, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. As of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, the recorded values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximated fair value due to the short-term nature of the instruments. Cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities are Level 1 financial instruments.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents. The cash and cash equivalents the Company uses to satisfy working capital and operating expense needs are held in accounts at various financial institutions. Cash balances may at times exceed federally insured limits. Cash and cash equivalents could be adversely impacted, including the loss of uninsured deposits and other uninsured financial assets, if one or more of the financial institutions in which the Company holds its cash or cash equivalents fails or is subject to other adverse conditions in the financial or credit markets. No such losses have been incurred through March 31, 2025.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets represent costs incurred that benefit future periods. These costs are amortized over specific time periods based on the agreements.

Research and Development Expenses

Substantially all the Company's research and development expenses consist of expenses incurred in connection with the development of the Company's product candidates. These expenses include fees paid to third parties to conduct certain research and development activities on the Company's behalf, consulting costs, costs for laboratory supplies, product acquisition and license costs, certain payroll and personnel-related expenses, including salaries and bonuses, employee benefit costs and stock-based compensation expenses for the Company's research and product development employees. The Company expenses both internal and external research and development expenses as incurred.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses represent personnel costs for employees involved in general corporate functions, including finance, accounting, legal and human resources, among others. Additional costs included in general and administrative expenses consist of professional fees for legal (including patent costs), audit and other consulting services, stock-based compensation and other general corporate overhead expenses.

Patent Costs

The Company expenses all costs as incurred in connection with patent licenses and applications (including direct application fees, and the legal and consulting expenses related to making such applications) and such costs are reflected in general and administrative expenses in the statements of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation for all share-based payments made to employees and non-employees by estimating the fair value on the date of grant and recognizing compensation expense over the requisite service period on a straight-line basis. The Company recognizes forfeitures related to stock-based compensation as they occur. The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including expected common stock volatility, expected dividend yield, expected term, risk-free interest rate, and the estimated fair value (prior to the Company's initial public offering) or the public market closing price of the Company's underlying common stock on the date of grant.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for corporate income taxes in accordance with GAAP as stipulated in ASC, Topic 740, Income Taxes, ("ASC 740"). This standard entails the use of the asset and liability method of computing the provision for income tax expense. Current tax expense results from corporate tax payable at the Federal and California jurisdictions for the Company, which relates to the current accounting period. Deferred tax expense results primarily from temporary differences between financial statement and tax return reporting, which result in additional tax payable in future periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statement basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates and law. Net future tax benefits are subject to a valuation allowance when management expects that it is more-likely-than-not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Current and non-current tax assets and liabilities are based upon an estimate of taxes refundable or payable for each of the jurisdictions in which the Company is subject to tax. In the ordinary course of business there is inherent uncertainty in quantifying income tax positions. The Company assess income tax positions and record the largest amount of tax benefit with a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where it is not more likely than not that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit is recognized in the financial statements. The Company's policy is to recognize interest or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 eliminated the option to immediately deduct research and development expenditures in the year incurred under Section 174, which became effective January 1, 2022. We are monitoring legislation for any further changes to Section 174 and the impact, if any, to the financial statements in 2025.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss includes all changes in equity (net assets) during a period from non-owner sources. There were no elements of other comprehensive income (loss) in the periods presented, as a result comprehensive loss is the same as net loss for each period presented.

Net (Loss) Income per Share

Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share is presented in conformity with the two-class method required for participating securities. Basic and diluted net (loss) income for common stock and for preferred stock is computed by dividing the sum of distributed earnings and undistributed earnings for each class of stock by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for each class of stock for the period. Diluted net loss per share includes potentially dilutive securities outstanding for the period. See Note 12 for reconciliations of basic and diluted net (loss) income per share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") or other standard setting bodies and adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the impact of recently issued standards that are not yet effective are not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations upon adoption.

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (ASC 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which requires an enhanced disclosure of significant segment expenses on an annual and interim basis. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. Upon adoption, the guidance should be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. The Company has adopted this guidance, and it did not have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Income Taxes Disclosures – In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, "Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures." ASU 2023-09 requires disaggregated information about a reporting entity's effective tax rate reconciliation as well as information on income taxes paid. ASU 2023-09 is effective for public entities with annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on its financial statements.

Accounting pronouncements pending adoption

On November 4, 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-03, Expense Disaggregation Disclosures ("ASU 2024-03"). ASU 2024-03 amends ASC 220, Comprehensive Income to expand income statement expense disclosures and require disclosure in the notes to the financial statements of specified information about certain costs and expenses. ASU 2024-03 is required to be adopted for fiscal years commencing after December 15, 2026, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the standard on its financial statements.

3. Significant Agreements

With regards to manufacturing, testing and potential commercial supply of oxylanthanum carbonate, on October 31, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Shilpa Medicare Ltd ("Shilpa") based in India. Pursuant to the Agreement, Shilpa provides certain development, manufacturing, supply and other CMC-related services related to the development and commercialization of oxylanthanum carbonate ("OLC").

In June 2024, the Company entered into the First Amendment to Manufacturing and Supply Agreement with Shilpa (the "Amendment") in anticipation of an increased manufacturing demand for OLC. Pursuant to the Amendment, the Company has agreed to make a binding purchase order for tablets of OLC and Shilpa has agreed to deliver such order by September 30, 2025. In addition, the Company has agreed to order additional tablets for delivery between December 31, 2025, and September 30, 2026. Further, the Company has agreed to make certain milestone payments and to provide certain funding to Shilpa for a new manufacturing line. The initial term of the Agreement shall continue until the eighth (8th) anniversary of the date of receipt by the Company of FDA approval of its NDA of OLC (the "Initial Term"). Following the Initial Term, the Agreement shall continue in effect for consecutive periods of four (4) years each unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

In October 2017, the Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with Sphaera, a stockholder, for the rights to further develop the drug candidate, UNI 494, for commercialization. No payments were made upon execution of the agreement but payments for \$50,000 will be due commencing with the initiation by the Company of a second clinical trial and \$50,000 on completion of such trial. If the FDA accepts a NDA application submitted by the Company for the product, the Company will pay Sphaera \$1.65 million. Upon commercialization and sale of the drug product, royalty payments will also be payable quarterly to Sphaera equal to 2% of net sales on the preceding quarter.

In September 2018, the Company entered into an Assignment and Asset Purchase Agreement with Spectrum Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Spectrum Agreement") pursuant to which the Company purchased certain assets from Spectrum, including Spectrum's right, title, interest in and intellectual property related to Renazorb RZB 012, also known as RENALANTM ("Renalan") and RZB 014, also known as SPI 014 ("SPI" and together with Renalan, the "Compounds"), to further develop and commercialize Oxylanthanum Carbonate and related compounds. In partial consideration for the Spectrum Agreement, the Company issued 313,663 shares of common stock to Spectrum valued at approximately \$4,000 which represented four percent of the Company on a fully-diluted basis at the date of the execution of the Spectrum Agreement. The Spectrum Agreement has an anti-dilution provision, which provides that Spectrum maintain its ownership interest in the Company at 4% of the Company's shares on a fully-diluted basis. Fully-diluted shares of common stock for purposes of the Spectrum Agreement assumes conversion of any security convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for common stock or any combination thereof, including any common stock reserved for issuance under a stock option plan, restricted stock plan, or other equity incentive plan approved by the Board of Directors of the Company immediately following the issuance of additional shares of the Company's common stock (but prior to the issuance of any additional shares of common stock to Spectrum). Spectrum's ownership shall not be subject to dilution until the earlier of thirty-six months from the first date the Company's stock trades on a public market, or the date upon which the Company attains a public market capitalization of at least \$50 million. On July 13, 2021, the Company's initial public offering resulted in a public market capitalization of at least \$50 million, and as a result the Company was required to issue 438,374 anti-dilution shares of common stock. This issuance represented the final anti-dilution calculation required under the Spectrum Agreement, and no further anti-dilution shares will be issued. The Company calculated the fair value of the shares and recognized \$2.2 million to research and development expenses as cost to issue those shares during the third quarter of 2021. In the event an NDA filing for Oxylanthanum Carbonate is accepted by the FDA, the Company will be required to pay \$0.2 million to Altair Nanomaterials, Inc., ("Altair") in accordance with the Spectrum Agreement. In addition, in the event FDA approval for Oxylanthanum Carbonate is received, the Company will be required to pay \$4.5 million to Altair. The Company is also required to pay Spectrum 40% of all the Company's sublicense income for any sublicense granted to certain sublicensees during the first 12 months after the Closing Date (as that term is defined in the Spectrum Agreement) and 20% of all other sublicense income. The Company's payment obligations to Spectrum will expire on the twentieth (20th) anniversary of the Closing Date of the Spectrum Agreement. In August 2022, the Company received an upfront payment of approximately \$1.0 million resulting from a sublicense development agreement with Lee's Pharmaceutical (HK) Limited. The payment represents sublicense income as described in the Spectrum Agreement, and 20% of the amount received has been accrued as an R&D expense in the accompanying statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2022. In February 2023, the Company received an upfront payment of approximately \$0.7 million resulting from a sublicense development agreement with Lotus International Pte Ltd. The payment represents sublicense income as described in the Spectrum Agreement, and 20% of the amount received has been accrued as an R&D expense in the accompanying statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2025.

On January 6, 2022, the Company entered into a Master Services Agreement with Quotient Sciences Limited ("Quotient"), a UK based company that provides drug development and analysis services, for the purpose of performing clinical research in support of UNI-494. The initial budget for the study is approximately \$3.7 million, and subsequent revisions reduced the overall budget to \$2.9 million. Related payments totaling approximately \$2.8 million have been paid to Quotient as of March 31, 2025, approximately \$2.8 million of related expense has been recorded, and there is no prepaid balance in the accompanying balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, respectively.

On April 10, 2023, the Company entered into an agreement with Inotiv that provides preclinical trial and related services, for the purpose of performing research in support of UNI-494. The budget for these services is approximately \$2.9 million. Approximately \$2.9 million has been paid to Inotiv as of March 31, 2025 and there is no prepaid balance in the accompanying balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, respectively.

On July 14, 2022, the Company entered into a license agreement with Lee's Pharmaceutical (HK) Limited. Under the terms of the agreement, Lee's Pharmaceutical will be responsible for development, registration filing and approval for Oxylanthanum Carbonate in China, Hong Kong, and certain other Asian markets. In addition, Lee's Pharmaceutical will have sole responsibility for the importation of the drug product from the Company and for the costs of commercialization of Oxylanthanum Carbonate in the licensed territories. The Company has received an upfront payment of \$1.0 million, expects to receive up to \$1.0 million in milestone payments upon product launch in China and will be eligible for tiered royalties of between 7% and 10% upon achievement of prespecified regulatory and commercial achievements.

On February 1, 2023, the Company entered into a license agreement with Lotus International Pte Ltd. ("Lotus"). Under the terms of the agreement, Lotus will be responsible for development, registration filing and approval for Oxylanthanum Carbonate in the licensed territory of South Korea. In addition, Lotus will have sole responsibility for the importation of the drug product from the Company and for the costs of commercialization of Oxylanthanum Carbonate in the licensed territory. The Company has received an upfront payment of \$0.7 million, may receive up to \$3.7 million in future milestone payments and will be eligible for tiered royalties upon achievement of specified commercial achievements.

On June 29, 2023 and October 26, 2023, the Company entered into services agreements with Shilpa Medicare Ltd related to NDA filing support for Oxylanthanum Carbonate. The agreements provide for total payments of up to \$6.5 million, and the Company has made \$6.5 million in payments pursuant to the agreements as of December 31, 2024.

4. Balance Sheet Components

Prepaid expenses and other current assets as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 consisted of the following (in thousands):

	As of December 31, 2024		As of March 31, 2025
Prepaid directors' and officers' liability insurance premiums	\$	263	137
Prepaid drug manufacturing supply costs		3,572	6,072
Other		971	1,368
Total	\$	4,806	7,577
Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 consisted of the following (in thousands):			
	Dece	As of ember 31, 2024	As of March 31, 2025
Leasehold improvements	\$	49	\$ 49
Lab equipment		26	26
Furniture and fixtures		39	55
Subtotal		114	130
Less accumulated depreciation		(39)	(47)
Net	\$	75	83
Accounts payable as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 consisted of the following (in thousands):			
	Dece	As of ember 31, 2024	As of March 31, 2025
Trade accounts payable	\$	966	1,251
Credit card liability	•	92	146
Total	\$	1,058	1,397
Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 consisted of the following (in thousands):			
	Dece	As of ember 31, 2024	As of March 31, 2025
Accrued labor costs	\$	1,910	\$ 2,372
Accrued drug development costs	Ψ	1,258	959
Other		394	812
Total	\$	3,562	\$ 4,143
14			

5. Operating Lease

The Company leases office space under an operating lease. In December 2021, the Company entered into a lease agreement for 2,367 square feet of office space commencing December 1, 2021. The initial lease term was for two years, and there was an option to extend the lease for an additional year. On March 3, 2023, the Company expanded its leased space through a lease amendment by an additional 2,456 square feet commencing March 15, 2023. The term of the amended lease is for three years with an option to extend the lease for three additional years. On June 28, 2024, the Company further expanded its leased space through a lease amendment by an additional 2,581 square feet commencing July 15, 2024. The term of the amended lease unifies with the current expiration of the lease.

The lease amendment represents a modification of the original lease, and the Company evaluated the new agreement under ASC 842, *Leases*. The Company classified the lease as an operating lease and, on July 15, 2024, determined that the present value of the lease was approximately \$1.0 million using an estimated incremental borrowing rate of 10%. During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, the Company reflected amortization of right-of-use asset of approximately \$80,000 and \$127,000, respectively, resulting in a right of use asset balance of approximately \$0.5 million at March 31, 2025.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, the Company made cash payments on the lease of \$0.1 million and \$0.1 million, respectively, towards the lease liabilities. As of March 31, 2025, the total lease liability was approximately \$0.5 million.

Rent expense for the lease for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 was approximately \$0.1 million and \$0.1 million, respectively.

As of March 31, 2025, maturities of the Company's lease liabilities are as follows (in thousands, unaudited):

	Operating Lease
Year ending December 31, 2025	459
Year ending December 31, 2026	118
Total lease payments	577
Less imputed interest rate / present value discount	(29)
Present value of lease liability	548
Less current portion	(548)
Long term portion	\$ 0

6. Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies

The Company is subject to claims and legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. Such matters are inherently uncertain, and there can be no guarantee that the outcome of any such matter will be decided favorably to the Company or that the resolution of any such matter will not have a material adverse effect upon the Company's financial statements. The Company currently has no pending claims or legal proceedings.

Indemnification

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts and agreements that contain a variety of representations and warranties and provide for general indemnifications, including for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party, in connection with any trade secret, copyright, patent or other intellectual property infringement claim by any third party with respect to its technology. The term of these indemnification agreements is generally perpetual any time after the execution of the agreement. The Company's exposure under these agreements is unknown because it involves claims that may be made against the Company in the future, but that have not yet been made. To date, the Company has not paid any claims or been required to defend any action related to its indemnification obligations.

The Company believes that the likelihood of conditions arising that would trigger these indemnities is remote and, historically, the Company had not made any significant payment under such indemnification provisions. Accordingly, the Company has not recorded any liabilities relating to these agreements. However, the Company may record charges in the future as a result of these indemnification obligations.

Additionally, the Company has agreed to indemnify its directors and officers for certain events or occurrences while the director or officer is, or was serving, at the Company's request in such capacity. The indemnification period covers all pertinent events and occurrences during the director's or officer's service.

Employee Benefit Plan

In December 2021, the Company implemented a 401(k) Plan which covers all eligible employees of the Company (the "401(k) Plan"). Employer matching contributions are immediately 100% vested. The Company's 401(k) Plan provides that the Company match each participant's contribution at 100% up to 4% of the employee's eligible compensation. Company contributions to the 401(k) Plan totaled approximately \$35,000 and \$42,000 for the for the three months ended March 2024 and March 31, 2025, respectively.

7. Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

Authorized Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 400,000,000 shares of common stock at par value of \$0.001 per share.

Issuance of Common Stock and Warrants from Initial Public Offering

During July 2021, as a result of its initial public offering ("IPO"), the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock and 4,000,000 warrants to investors in exchange for cash at \$5.00 per unit, consisting of \$4.99 per share of common stock and \$.0125 per four fifths of a warrant. The warrants have a 5-year term and an exercise price of \$6.00 per warrant. The underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 600,000 warrants, and the Company received \$7,500 in proceeds.

As a result of the initial public offering, the Company's outstanding convertible notes and unpaid accrued interest were converted into 736,773 shares of common stock. Additionally, in accordance with the original terms of the warrant agreements convertible noteholders were granted a total of 184,193 common stock warrants with a 5-year term and with an exercise price of \$6.00 per warrant.

The warrants from the initial public offering are equity classified. The following table summarizes activity for the Company's IPO warrants for the three months ended March 31, 2025:

			Weighted-	
	Number of		Average	
	Shares	Weighted-	Remaining	Aggregate
	Underlying	Average	Contractual	Intrinsic
	Outstanding	Exercise	Term	Value
	Warrants	Price	(in Years)	(in thousands)
Outstanding, December 31, 2024	4,784,193	6.00	1.54	-
Warrants granted	-	-	-	-
Warrants exercised	=	-	-	-
Outstanding, March 31, 2025	4,784,193	6.00	1.29	-

See Note 10 for information on preferred stock warrants associated with our sale in March 2023 of Series A-1 Preferred Stock.

Issuance of Common Stock Upon Conversion of Series A and Series B Preferred Stock

On June 26, 2023, the Company held its annual shareholder meeting and, as a result, shareholder approval for the issuance of common shares upon the conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock was obtained (see Notes 8 and 9). On July 11, 2023, pursuant to the Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series A Convertible Voting Preferred Stock (the "Series A Certificate of Designation"), the Company issued a total of 19,516,205 shares of common stock and 43,649 Series A-2 preferred Stock in settlement of the auto-conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock.

On March 26, 2024, the Company issued 2,850,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 1,396.50 shares of Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On June 20, 2024, we held our annual stockholder meeting, and as a result, stockholder approval for the conversion of the Series B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock was obtained (see Note 9). On July 5, 2024, pursuant to the Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the Company issued 42,118,000 shares of common stock and 7,882 shares of Series B-2 preferred stock in settlement of the automatic conversion of the Series B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock

On June 25, 2024, the Company issued 5,956,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 2,918.44 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On July 23, 2024, the Company issued 3,550,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 1,739.50 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On July 25, 2024, the Company issued 3,756,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 1,840.44 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On July 29, 2024, the Company issued 1,359,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 665.91 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On August 14, 2024, the Company issued 3,502,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 1,715.98 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On October 9, 2024, the Company issued 5,500,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 2,695 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On October 31, 2024, the Company issued 438,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 438 shares of the Company's Series B-2 Preferred Stock.

On December 11, 2024, the Company issued 4,624,551 shares of common stock upon conversion of 2,266.03 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

On December 18, 2024, the Company issued 1,441,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 1,441 shares of the Company's Series B-2 Preferred Stock.

On December 19, 2024, the Company issued 3,003,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 3,003 shares of the Company's Series B-2 Preferred Stock.

On February 18, 2025, the Company issued 1,400,000 shares of common stock upon conversion of 686 shares of the Company's Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

Voting Rights of Common Stock

Each holder of shares of common stock shall be entitled to one vote for each share thereof held.

8. Issuance of Series A-1 Preferred Stock

On March 3, 2023, the Company issued and sold, in a private placement, 30,190 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock for an aggregate net proceeds of \$28.0 million (the "Preferred Stock Offering"), net of placement agent fees and offering expenses of \$2.2 million. The Company has used the net proceeds from the Preferred Stock Offering to support the Company's New Drug Application (NDA) submission for approval of Oxylanthanum Carbonate for the treatment of hyperphosphatemia and, if approved, for the commercial launch of Oxylanthanum Carbonate in the U.S.

Pursuant to the Series A Certificate of Designation, as of March 3, 2023, each share of Series A-1 Preferred Stock was, subject to approval of the Company's stockholders, convertible into a unit ("Unit") consisting of: (i) shares of common stock of the Company and, if applicable, shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock, in lieu of common stock, (ii) a tranche A warrant to acquire approximately 46,675,940 shares (excluding deemed dividends) of Series A-3 Preferred Stock (the "Tranche A Warrant"), (iii) a tranche B warrant to acquire approximately 42,432,672 shares (excluding deemed dividends) of Series A-4 Preferred Stock (the "Tranche B Warrant"), and (iv) a tranche C warrant to acquire approximately 67,892,276 shares (excluding deemed dividends) of Series A-5 Preferred Stock (the "Tranche C Warrant", together with the Tranche A Warrant and the Tranche B Warrant, the "Warrants"). The Tranche A Warrant, for an aggregate exercise price of approximately \$25 million, is exercisable until 21 days following the Company's announcement of receipt of FDA approval for Oxylanthanum Carbonate, and the Tranche C Warrant for an aggregate exercise price of approximately \$50 million is exercisable until 21 days following four quarters of commercial sales of Oxylanthanum Carbonate following receipt of TDAPA approval.

The Company has designated 30,190 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 1,800,000 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock, 1,800,000 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock, 1,800,000 shares of Series A-4 Preferred Stock, and 3,600,000 shares of Series A-5 Preferred Stock, together the "Series A Preferred Stock". The Series A Preferred Stock has a par value of \$0.001 per share. The Series A Certificate of Designation states that, to the extent that the conversion of the Series A-1 preferred stock as well as the exercise of the Warrants into Series A-2, Series A-3, Series A-4, and Series A-5 preferred stock results in a beneficial ownership interest in excess of the maximum percentage of common stock upon conversion, the holders will receive the as converted equivalent for the remaining shares in preferred stock.

The Company determined that the Warrants are freestanding from the Series A-1 Preferred Stock, because the stock will automatically convert into shares of common stock, and the holders will be able to sell those shares while retaining the Warrants. The Company noted that at contract inception, the Warrants were contingently issuable upon the occurrence of a specified event (shareholder approval).

In connection with the Series A-1 Preferred Stock issuance, the Company recognized liabilities for the associated Warrants, which had an aggregate fair value of \$2.8 million at the time of issuance. Offering costs of \$0.2 million were allocated to the Warrants and expensed during March 2023. The fair value of the Warrants was accounted for as a reduction to the net proceeds of the Preferred Stock Offering, which resulted in an initial carrying value of \$25.4 million for the Series A-1 Preferred Stock (net of \$2.0 million of placement agent fees and offering costs allocated to the Series A-1 Preferred Stock). Refer to Note 10 for disclosures related to the Warrants.

On June 26, 2023, the Company held its annual shareholder meeting and, as a result, shareholder approval for the conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock was obtained. On July 11, 2023, pursuant to the Series A Certificate of Designation, the Company issued 19,516,205 shares of common stock and 43,649 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock in partial settlement of the auto-conversion of the Series A-1 preferred shares. As of December 31, 2023, there were zero shares of Series A-1 preferred stock issued and outstanding and there were 43,649 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock issued and outstanding.

The Series A-2, A-3, A-4, and A-5 Preferred Stock have the following rights:

Dividends: While shares of Series A Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding, holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Corporation shall pay, dividends on shares of Series A Preferred Stock equal (on an as-if-converted-to-Common-Stock basis) and in the same form as dividends (other than dividends in the form of Common Stock) actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when, as and if such dividends are paid on shares of the Common Stock.

Voting: Holders of the Series A-2, A-3, A-4, and A-5 Preferred Stock are entitled to vote together with the common stock on an as-if-converted-to-common-stock basis as determined by dividing the liquidation preference with respect to such shares of Preferred Stock by the conversion price. Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Accordingly, holders of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each whole share of Common Stock into which their Series A Preferred Stock is then-convertible on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders.

At the option of the holder thereof, each share of Series A-2 Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Preferred Stock, or Series A-5 Preferred Stock shall be convertible into one share of common stock.

Exchange Agreement

On March 13, 2024, the Company entered into an exchange agreement (the "Exchange Agreement") with certain accredited investors (the "Investors"), pursuant to which the Investors surrendered all shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock held by them in exchange for an aggregate of 21,388.01 shares of new preferred stock to be known as "Series A-2 Prime Preferred" having rights set forth in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series A Convertible Voting Preferred Stock (the "Amended Series A Certificate of Designation").

Concurrent with execution of the Exchange Agreement, but prior to filing of the Amended Series A Certificate of Designation with the Delaware Secretary of State, the Company filed Certificates of Elimination for each of its Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Preferred Stock and Series A-5 Preferred Stock (collectively, the "Certificates of Elimination") with the Delaware Secretary of State.

Concurrent with the execution of the Exchange Agreement, the Company and each Investor have amended and restated the following warrants: (i) tranche A warrants to acquire an aggregate of 47,852,430 shares of Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company that were issued on July 11 2023 (the "Original Tranche A Warrants") have been amended and restated to acquire an aggregate of 25,840.3122 shares of Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock (as amended, the "Amended Tranche A Warrants"); (ii) tranche B warrants to acquire an aggregate of 43,502,206 shares of Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company that were issued on July 11, 2023 (the "Original Tranche B Warrants") and (iii) tranche C warrants to acquire an aggregate of 25,666.30154 shares of Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock (as amended, the "Amended Tranche B Warrants") and (iii) tranche C warrants to acquire an aggregate of 69,603,531 shares of Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company that were issued on July 11, 2023 (the "Original Tranche C Warrants"), and together with the Original Tranche A Warrants and Tranche B Warrants, the "Original Warrants") have been amended and restated to acquire 51,506.61294 shares of Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock (as amended, the "Amended Tranche C Warrants,") together with the Amended Tranche A Warrants and the Amended Tranche B Warrants, the "Amended Warrants have the same terms and conditions as the original warrants except that such Amended Warrants: (i) reduced the amount of shares of Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Preferred Stock and Series A-5 Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Preferred Stock and Series A-5 Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Preferred Stock and Series A-5 Preferred Stock, Series A-7 Preferred Stock, Series A-8 Preferred Stock and Series A-9 Preferred Stock, Series A-9 Preferred Stock and Series A-9 Preferred Stock, the Series A-9 Preferred Stock and exercise price, the amount of shares of Common Stock upon conversion of the Series A-9 Preferred Stock

Subject to the terms and limitations contained in the Amended Series A Certificate of Designation, each share of Series A-2 Prime Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock or Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible into a number shares of Common Stock obtained by dividing the Original Per Share Price (\$1,000) of each such share of Series A-2 Prime Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock by the applicable conversion price of \$0.49, \$0.54, \$0.59 and \$0.74 of each such share of Series A-2 Prime Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-6 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-7 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-8 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-8 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-9 Convertible Preferred Stock or Series A-9 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-9 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-9 Convertible Preferred Stock or Series A-9 Convertibl

Pursuant to the terms of the Exchange Agreement, effective March 13, 2024, the Company filed the Amended Certificate of Designation with the Delaware Secretary of State designating, 21,400 shares as Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock, 25,900 shares as Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, 25,700 shares as Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock, and 51,600 shares as Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock (all such series of preferred stock referred to herein collectively as "Series A Preferred Stock"), each with a stated value of \$1,000 per share (the "Original Per Share Price"). The Amended Certificate of Designation sets forth the rights, preferences and limitations of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock. Terms not otherwise defined in this item shall have the meanings given in the Amended Certificate of Designation. The Amended Certificate of Designation was filed with an effective date of March 14, 2024 and the Series A-2 Prime, A-3, A-4, and A-5 Preferred Stock have the following rights, has the following terms:

Dividends. At all times following the Issuance Date, while shares of Series A Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding, holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series A Preferred Stock equal (on an as-if-converted-to-Common-Stock basis and without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein or otherwise) to and in the same form as dividends (other than dividends in the form of Common Stock, which shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Amended Certificate of Designation) actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when, as and if such dividends (other than dividends in the form of Common Stock, which shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Amended Certificate of Designation) are paid on shares of the Common Stock.

Voting Rights. Subject to certain limitations described in the Amended Certificate of Designation, the Series A Preferred Stock is voting stock. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to vote together with the Common Stock on an as-if-converted-to-Common-Stock basis. Holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Accordingly, holders of Series A Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each whole share of Common Stock into which their Series A Preferred Stock is then-convertible on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders.

Liquidation. Upon any Liquidation, the assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders shall be distributed among the holders of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock and Common Stock, pro rata based on the number of shares held by each such holder, treating for this purpose all shares of Series A Preferred Stock as if they had been converted to Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the Amended Certificate of Designation immediately prior to such Liquidation, without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth in the Amended Certificate of Designation or otherwise.

Conversion. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Amended Certificate of Designation, at the option of the holder, each share of Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock of Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock shall be convertible into a number shares of Common Stock obtained by dividing the Original Per Share Price (\$1,000) of each such share of Series A-2 Prime Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock or Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock by the applicable conversion price of \$0.49, \$0.54, \$0.59 and \$0.74 for the Series A-2 Prime Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A-4 Convertible Preferred Stock or Series A-5 Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively.

9. Issuance of Series B-1 Preferred Stock and Series B-2 Preferred Stock

On March 13, 2024, the Company signed a securities purchase agreement with certain healthcare-focused institutional investors that provided \$50.0 million in gross proceeds through a private placement. Pursuant to the securities purchase agreement, the Company issued to institutional investors \$50.0 million in shares of Series B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock. 50,000 Shares of Series B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock were issued at a price of \$1,000.00 per share and each share is convertible into shares of common stock at a rate equal to the initial \$1,000 purchase price divided by the initial conversion price of \$1.00 per share.

Pursuant to the Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on March 14, 2024, as corrected by the Certificate of Correction to Series B Certificate of Designation filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on November 8, 2024 (the "Series B Certificate of Designation"), each share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock is, subject to approval of the Company's stockholders, convertible into shares of common stock of the Company and, if applicable, shares of Series B-2 Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series B-2 Preferred Stock"), in lieu of common stock.

The Company has designated 50,000 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock and 50,000 shares of Series B-2 Preferred Stock. The Series B Certificate of Designation states that, to the extent that the conversion of the Series B-1 preferred stock results in a beneficial ownership interest in excess of the maximum percentage of common stock upon conversion, the holders will receive them as converted equivalent for the remaining shares in preferred stock.

On June 20, 2024, The Company held its annual stockholder meeting, and as a result, stockholder approval for the conversion of the Series B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock was obtained. On July 5, 2024, pursuant to the Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, the Company issued 42,118,000 shares of common stock and 7,882 shares of Series B-2 preferred stock in settlement of the automatic conversion of the Series B-1 Convertible Preferred Stock.

The Series B-1 Preferred Stock has the following rights:

Dividends: Prior to the receiving Stockholder Approval, dividends will accrue, on all issued and outstanding shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock, prior to and in preference to all other shares of capital stock of the Company, at an annual rate of eight percent (8%) compounded annually on the original per share price (plus any such accreted compounded amounts); provided that such annual dividend rate shall increase to fourteen percent (14%) if Stockholder Approval is not obtained at the first meeting of stockholders following the date of the Preferred Stock offering. If such dividends are not declared and paid in cash, the dividend amounts will be added to the aggregate liquidation preference then outstanding of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

At all times following the Issuance Date, while shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding, holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Company shall pay, dividends on shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock equal (on an as-if-converted-to-Common-Stock basis and without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein or otherwise) to and in the same form as dividends (other than dividends in the form of Common Stock, which shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Series B Certificate of Designation) actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when, as and if such dividends (other than dividends in the form of Common Stock, which shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Series B Certificate of Designation) are paid on shares of the Common Stock. Stockholder approval was received on June 20, 2024.

Voting: Subject to certain limitations described in the Series B Certificate of Designation holders of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock are entitled to vote together with the common stock on an as-if-converted-to-common-stock basis as determined by dividing the liquidation preference with respect to such shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock by the conversion price. Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Unless and until the Company has obtained the Stockholder Approval, the number of shares of Common Stock that shall be deemed issued upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock (for purposes of calculating the number of aggregate votes that the holders of Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to on an as-converted basis) will be equal to that number of shares equal to 19.9% of the Company's outstanding Common Stock as of the Signing Date (excluding for purposes of the calculation, any securities issued on the Signing Date) (the "Cap"), which each such holder being able to vote the number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by it relative to the total number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock then outstanding multiplied by the Cap. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock are not entitled to vote together with the Common Stock on an as-if-converted-to-Common-Stock-basis with regard to the approval of the issuance of Common Stock upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock.

On the tenth trading day following the announcement of the Stockholder Approval, each share of Series B-1 Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into a unit consisting of: (1) the number of shares of common stock equal to the quotient of (A) the liquidation preference with respect to such share of Series B-1Preferred Stock, divided by (B) the conversion price, provided that, to the extent the share conversion would cause such Holder's beneficial ownership to exceed 9.99%, such holder shall receive shares of Series B-2 Preferred Stock in lieu of common stock, on a one-for-one basis, with respect to the number of shares of common stock that exceed 9.99% ownership divided by 1,000.

Liquidation Preference: The Series B-1 Preferred Stock had a liquidation preference of one-times the original per share price of \$1,000 per share, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends thereon, whether or not declared, subject to certain customary anti-dilution adjustments.

The Series B-2 Preferred Stock has the following rights:

Dividends: Dividends will accrue, on all issued and outstanding shares of Series B-2 Preferred Stock, prior to and in preference to all other shares of capital stock of the Company, at an annual rate of eight percent (8%) compounded annually on the original per share price (plus any such accreted compounded amounts). If such dividends are not declared and paid in cash, the dividend amounts will be added to the aggregate liquidation preference then outstanding.

Voting: Subject to certain limitations described in the Series B Certificate of Designation, the Series B-2 Preferred Stock is voting stock. Holders of the SeriesB-2 Preferred Stock are entitled to vote together with the common stock on an as-if-converted-to-common-stock basis. Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Accordingly, holders of Series B-2 Preferred Stock will be entitled to one vote for each whole share of common stock into which their Series B-2 Preferred Stock is then-convertible on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders.

Liquidation: Upon any Liquidation, the assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders shall be distributed among the holders of the shares of Series B Preferred Stock and common stock, pro rata based on the number of shares held by each such holder, treating for this purpose all shares of Series B preferred Stock as if they had been converted to common stock pursuant to the terms of the Certificate of Designation immediately prior to such Liquidation, without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth in the Series B Certificate of Designation or otherwise.

Conversion: Subject to the limitations set forth in the Series B Certificate of Designation, at the option of the holder thereof, each share of Series B-2 Preferred Stock, is convertible into the number of shares of common stock equal to the quotient of (A) the stated value (\$1,000), divided by (B) the conversion price of \$1.00.

10. Warrant Liability

In connection with the Series A Preferred Stock Offering (see Note 8), the Company issued the Warrants.

After the Warrants were legally issued as a result of the automatic conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock upon shareholder approval, they became immediately exercisable at the option of the holder. The Company determined that the Warrants, while initially contingently issuable, qualified as derivative instruments pursuant to ASC 815-40, *Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity* and that the Warrants were considered issued for accounting purposes concurrently with the Series A-1 Preferred Stock.

On June 26, 2023, the Company held its annual shareholder meeting, and as a result, shareholder approval for the conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock was obtained. On July 11, 2023, pursuant to the Series A Certificate of Designation, the Company issued, in addition to common stock and Series A-2 Preferred Stock, (i) a Tranche A Warrant to acquire 47,852,430 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock, (ii) a Tranche B Warrant to acquire 43,502,206 shares of Series A-4 Preferred Stock, and (iii) a Tranche C Warrant to acquire 69,603,531 shares of Series A-5 Preferred Stock.

In March 2024, the Company entered into an exchange agreement with certain accredited investors, pursuant to which the accredited investors surrendered all shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock held by them in exchange for shares of new preferred stock to be known as Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock having rights set forth in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of the Series A Convertible Voting Preferred Stock. See Note 8.

The Warrants are recognized as liabilities in the balance sheets and were initially recognized at fair value at the time of issuance. The Warrants are also subject to remeasurement at each balance sheet date after issuance. Any change in fair value is recognized as a component of other income (expense) in the statements of operations in the period of change.

The valuation of the Warrants contains unobservable inputs that reflect the Company's own assumptions for which there is little market data. Accordingly, the Warrants are measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs and are classified as Level 3 inputs. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company's Warrants include, but are not limited to, probability of obtaining certain shareholder approvals, probability of reaching certain technical milestones related to the development of Oxylanthanum Carbonate, and the estimated term of the Warrants. Significant increases (decreases) in any of those inputs in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement. Generally, a change in the assumption used for the probability of obtaining certain shareholder approvals is not correlated to a change in the probability of reaching certain technical milestones. However, a change to the assumption used for the probability of obtaining certain shareholder approvals or a change in the probability of reaching certain technical milestones would have been accompanied by a directionally opposite change and a directionally similar change, respectively, in the assumption used for the estimated term.

The fair value of the contingently issuable Warrants associated with the Company's March 2023 private placement transaction was initially determined as of March 3,2023, and March 31, 2023, by using a Monte Carlo simulation technique ("MCS") to value the embedded derivatives associated with the Warrants. The MCS methodology calculates the theoretical value of a warrant based on certain parameters, including: (i) the threshold of exercising the warrant, (ii) the price of the underlying security, (iii) the time to expiration, or expected term, (iv) the expected volatility of the underlying security, (v) the risk-free rate, (vi) the number of paths, (vii) estimated probability assumptions surrounding shareholder approval as well as the achievement by the Company of technical milestones associated with regulatory and commercial progress, and (viii) an estimated discount for lack of marketability.

The MCS valuation model was used for the valuation performed as of the transaction inception on March 3, 2023, and on March 31, 2023, due to uncertainty in the timing of shareholder approval and the potential variability in the Warrant exercise price. On June 26, 2023, the Company held its annual shareholder meeting, and as a result, shareholder approval for the issuance of common shares upon the conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock was obtained and the exercise price for the Warrants became fixed. Therefore, as of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, the fair value of the Warrants was determined using a Black Scholes model using parameters including (i) the exercise price of the warrant, (ii) the price of the underlying security, (iii) the time to expiration, or expected term, (iv) the expected volatility of the underlying security, (v) the risk-free rate, and (vi) estimated probability assumptions surrounding the achievement by the Company of technical milestones associated with regulatory and commercial progress.

These valuation techniques involve management's estimates and judgment based on unobservable inputs and are classified in Level 3. The fair value estimates may not be indicative of the amounts that would be realized in a market exchange. Additionally, there may be inherent uncertainties or changes in the underlying assumptions used, which could significantly affect the current or future fair value estimates. Generally, a significant increase (decrease) in the probabilities of shareholder approval and the achievement of technical milestones would have resulted in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement; however, changes in other inputs such as expected term and price of the underlying common stock will have a directionally opposite impact on fair value measurement.

The Company uses a third-party valuation expert to assist in the determination of the fair value of the Warrants. The tables below summarize the valuation inputs into the Black Scholes model for the liability associated with the three tranches of Warrants at December 31, 2024, and March 31, 2025.

Tranche A Warrant	Decem	At aber 31, 024	At March 31, 2025
Fair value of underlying stock	\$	0.79 \$	0.57
Exercise price	\$	0.54 \$	0.54
Volatility	10.	5.4% – 111.3%	71.2% - 104.7%
Risk free rate		4.2%	4.0% - 4.3%
Dividend yield		0%	0%
Term (in years)		0.5 - 1.5	0.2 - 1.2
Discount for lack of marketability		7.5%	7.5%
Probability for FDA approval	38	.48% - 39.29%	38.48% - 39.29%

Tranche B Warrant		At ember 31, 2024	At March 31, 2025
Fair value of underlying stock	\$	0.79 \$	0.57
Exercise price	\$	0.59 \$	0.59
Volatility	1	105.4% - 125.2%	103.1% - 104.7%
Risk free rate		4.2%	4.0% - 4.1%
Dividend yield		0%	0%
Term (in years)		1.0 - 2.0	0.8 - 1.8
Discount for lack of marketability		7.5%	7.5%
Probability for FDA approval		30%	30.0%

Tranche C Warrant	Dec	At ember 31, 2024	At March 31, 2025
Fair value of underlying stock	\$	0.79 \$	0.57
Exercise price	\$	0.74 \$	0.74
Volatility		105.4% - 125.2%	103.1% - 122.3%
Risk free rate		4.2%	3.9% - 4.0%
Dividend yield		0%	0%
Term (in years)		1.5 - 2.5	1.2 - 2.2
Discount for lack of marketability		7.5%	7.5%
Probability for FDA approval		0.01% - 27.46%	0.01% - 27.46%

As of the issuance date (March 3, 2023), the Company estimated the fair value of the Warrants to be \$2.8 million. As of December 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025, the Company estimated the fair value of the Warrants to be \$18.9 million and \$10.6 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes activity for the Company's preferred stock warrants for the three months ended March 31, 2024:

	Number of Shares Underlying Outstanding	Weighted- Average Exercise	Weighted- Average Remaining Contractual Term	Aggregate Intrinsic Value
	Warrants	Price	(in Years)	(in thousands)
Outstanding, December 31, 2024	160,958,167	\$ 0.64	2.12	\$
Warrants contingently issuable	-	-	-	-
Warrants exercised	_ _	-	-	-
Outstanding, March 31, 2025	160,958,167	\$ 0.64	1.88	\$

11. Stock-based Compensation

On July 15, 2021, in connection with the completion of the Company's IPO, the Company adopted a new comprehensive equity incentive plan, the 2021 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the "2021 Plan"). Following the effective date of the 2021 Plan, no further awards may be issued under the 2018 Plan or the 2019 Plan (collectively, the "Prior Plans"). However, all awards under the Prior Plans that are outstanding as of the effective date of the 2021 Plan will continue to be governed by the terms, conditions and procedures set forth in the Prior Plans and any applicable award agreements. A total of 1,302,326 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to the 2021 Plan prior to our annual meeting on June 26, 2023. Shareholders approved an increase to the number of shares reserved on June 26, 2023, and accordingly, at December 31, 2023, approximately 12,775,996 shares were reserved for issuance. On June 20, 2024, shareholders approved a further increase of 8,000,000 shares, to the number of shares reserved, for a total of 20,775,996 shares. On January 1, 2025, shareholders approved a further increase of 12,353,163 shares, to the number of shares reserved, for a total of 33,129,159 shares. The 2021 Plan provides for the issuance of incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, and other stock-based awards. As of December 31, 2024, approximately 7,433,327 shares of common stock were available under the 2021 Plan. As of March 31, 2025, there are approximately 19,676,490 shares of common stock available under the 2021 Plan.

The following table summarizes activity for stock options under all plans for the three months ended March 31, 2024:

	Number of Shares Underlying Outstanding Options		Weighted- Average Exercise Price	Average Remaining Contractual Term (in Years)	1	aggregate Intrinsic Value thousands)
Outstanding, December 31, 2024	13,671,140	\$	1.00	8.59	\$	705
Options granted	110,000	\$	0.57	9.86	\$	-
Options forfeited	-	\$	=	-	\$	-
Options exercised	-	\$	-	-	\$	-
Outstanding, March 31, 2025	13,781,140	\$	1.00	8.35	\$	189
Options vested and exercisable as of March 31, 2025	5,786,925	\$	1.19	7.91	\$	55

Weighted

The grant date fair value of options granted during the three months ended March 31, 2025, was approximately \$53,000.

As of March 31, 2025, the unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding stock options was \$5.0 million, which is expected to be recognized as expense over approximately 2.4 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, employees and consultants exercised a total of 383,721 stock options and the Company received \$119,000 in proceeds. A portion of these options were exercised early (prior to vesting), and as of September 30, 2024, none of the options remained unvested. Proceeds received related to the vested portion of options of \$2,500 were reclassified to equity during the year ended December 31, 2024.

During May 2022, the Company granted a consultant 10,000 restricted stock units with a grant date fair value of \$7,200, resulting in a fair value per share of \$0.72. The restricted stock units vested in May 2024.

During August 2023, the Company granted a consultant 10,000 restricted stock units with a grant date fair value of \$7,500, resulting in a fair value per share of \$0.75. The restricted stock units vested in March 2025.

During August 2024, the Company granted a consultant 11,765 restricted stock units with a grant date fair value of \$4,000, resulting in a fair value per share of \$0.34. The restricted stock units will vest in August 2026

The Company has recorded stock-based compensation expense, which includes expense related to restricted stock units, allocated by functional cost as follows for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 (in thousands):

		Three Mor Marc	ıded
	20)24	 2025
Research and development	\$	228	\$ 263
General and administrative		294	300
Total stock-based compensation	\$	522	\$ 563

Fair Value of Stock Options

The assumptions are based on the following for each of the periods presented:

Expected Term - The expected term is calculated using the simplified method which is used when there is insufficient historical data about exercise patterns and postvesting employment termination behavior. The simplified method is based on the vesting period and the contractual term for each grant, or for each vesting-tranche for awards with graded vesting. The mid-point between the vesting date and the maximum contractual expiration date is used as the expected term under this method.

Common Stock Fair Value - The fair value of the common stock underlying the Company's stock options prior to the initial public offering was estimated at each grant date and was determined on a periodic basis and based either on transactions with third parties in which common stock was sold for cash or with the assistance of an independent third-party valuation expert. Subsequent to our initial public offering, the fair value underlying the Company's common stock is determined based on the public market closing price on each date of grant. The assumptions underlying these valuations represented management's best estimates, which involved inherent uncertainties and the application of significant levels of management judgment.

Volatility - The expected volatility being used is derived from the historical stock volatilities of a representative industry peer group of comparable publicly listed companies over a period approximately equal to the expected term of the options.

Risk-free Interest Rate - The risk-free interest rate is based on median U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with remaining terms similar to the expected term on the options.

Expected Dividend – Through March 31, 2025, the Company has never declared nor paid any cash dividends. The Company shall modify its dividend policy to state that the Company intends to pay dividends to all stockholders, including holders of Series A Preferred Stock on an as-if-converted-to-common-stock basis, on a quarterly basis in an amount of which the aggregate of all quarterly dividends shall equal at least seventy-five percent (75%) of its annual net cash flow from operations following the approval of Oxylanthanum Carbonate by the FDA if obtained, and the commencement of commercial sales.

The following averaged assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of awards granted to employees, directors and non-employees for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025:

	Three Months March 3	
	2024	2025
Expected volatility	106.48%	108.49%
Risk-free interest rate	4.05%	4.38%
Dividend yield	-%	-%
Expected term	6.25 years	6.25 years

12. Net (Loss) Income Per Share

The Company computes net (loss) income per share using the two-class method. The two-class method uses an earnings allocation formula that determines net loss per share for common stock and any participating securities according to dividends declared and participation rights in undistributed earnings.

Diluted net loss per share includes the potential dilutive effect of common stock equivalents as if such securities were converted or exercised during the period, when the effect is dilutive. Common stock equivalents include: (i) outstanding stock options and restricted stock units; (ii) common stock to be issued upon the assumed exercise of the Company's common stock warrants; (iii) common stock to be issued upon the assumed conversion of the Company's convertible preferred stock, and (iv) warrants related to the Company's March private placement financing. Because the impact of these items is generally anti-dilutive during periods of net loss, there is no difference between basic and diluted loss per common share for periods with net losses.

The following tables set forth the computation of basic and diluted net (loss) income per share of common stock (in thousands, except share and per share data):

	Three Months Ended March 31,			nded
		2024		2025
Basic net (loss) income per share				
Numerator:				
Net (loss) income	\$	(20,963)	\$	570
Less: Dividend to Series B preferred stockholders		(208)		-
Net income attributable to participating securities		-		(60)
Net (loss) income attributable to common stockholders, basic		(21,171)		510
Denominator:				
Weighted-average shares outstanding used in computing net (loss) income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic		34,912,692		116,818,811
Net (loss) income per share attributable to common stockholders, basic	\$	(0.61)	\$	-
		Three Mon Marc		nded
				2025
Diluted net loss per share	_	Marc		
Diluted net loss per share Numerator:	_	Marc		
1	\$	Marc	h 31,	
Numerator:	\$	Marc 2024	h 31,	2025
Numerator: Net (loss) income	\$	Marc 2024 (20,963)	h 31,	2025
Numerator: Net (loss) income Less: Dividend to Series B preferred stockholders	\$	Marc 2024 (20,963)	h 31,	2025
Numerator: Net (loss) income Less: Dividend to Series B preferred stockholders Net income attributable to participating securities	\$	Marc 2024 (20,963)	h 31,	2025 570 (60)
Numerator: Net (loss) income Less: Dividend to Series B preferred stockholders Net income attributable to participating securities Change in fair value of preferred stock warrant liability	\$	2024 (20,963) (208)	h 31,	570 - (60) (6,724)
Numerator: Net (loss) income Less: Dividend to Series B preferred stockholders Net income attributable to participating securities Change in fair value of preferred stock warrant liability Net loss attributable to common stockholders, diluted	\$	2024 (20,963) (208)	h 31,	570 - (60) (6,724)

The following outstanding shares of potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted net (loss) income per share for the periods presented because including them would have been antidilutive:

	Three Month March	
	2024	2025
Options to purchase common stock	10,320,505	13,645,794
Series A-2 Prime preferred stock	, , <u>-</u>	11,151,449
Series B-2 preferred stock	-	3,000,000
Warrants to purchase common stock	4,784,193	4,784,193
Warrants to purchase convertible preferred stock	160,958,167	69,603,531
Total	176,062,865	102,184,967

13. Subsequent Events

None

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three-month period ended March 31, 2025 contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). These forward-looking statements contain information about our expectations, beliefs or intentions regarding our product development and commercialization efforts, business, financial condition, results of operations, strategies or prospects, and other similar matters. These forward-looking statements are based on management's current expectations and assumptions about future events, which are inherently subject to uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict. These statements may be identified by words such as "expects," "plans," "projects," "will," "may," "anticipates," "believes," "should," "intends," "estimates," and other words of similar meaning.

Actual results could differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements. Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements, including those matters discussed below. Readers are urged to read the risk factors set forth in the Company's recent filings with the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). These filings are available at the SEC's website (www.sec.gov).

Other unknown or unpredictable factors that could also adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations may arise from time to time. Given these risks and uncertainties, the forward-looking statements discussed in this report may not prove to be accurate. Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which only reflect the views of the Company's management as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results or expectations, except as required by law.

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the related notes to those statements included elsewhere in this quarterly report and in our previously filed Form 10-K. In addition to historical financial information, the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results and timing of selected events may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those discussed under "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this quarterly report. See "Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements." All amounts in this report are in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise noted.

Overview

We are a clinical-stage biotechnology company focused on identifying, developing, and commercializing innovative therapies to address significant unmet medical needs, with an initial focus on kidney disease. Founded in 2016, Unicycive was established to create a streamlined and efficient drug development platform capable of accelerating the advancement of promising therapies from discovery to commercialization. Currently, our two programs are focused on kidney disease, an area we believe we have the potential to offer medical benefit. Our initial focus is on developing drugs and getting them approved in the U.S., and then to partner with global biopharmaceutical companies in the rest of the world. As we grow the company and build our team, we intend to focus on identifying medical conditions within and outside of kidney disease. Our business model is to license technologies and drugs in order to pursue development, regulatory approval, and commercialization of those products in global markets. Many biotechnology companies utilize similar strategies of in-licensing and then developing and commercializing drugs. We believe, however, that our management team's broad network, expertise in the biopharmaceutical industry, and successful track record gives us an advantage in identifying and bringing these assets into our company.

Our current development programs are focused on two novel therapies: Oxylanthanum Carbonate, a next-generation phosphate binder for the treatment of hyperphosphatemia in chronic kidney disease patients on dialysis, and UNI-494, a novel drug candidate in development for the treatment of acute kidney injury. Oxylanthanum Carbonate and UNI-494 were initially developed by and licensed to us from Spectrum Pharmaceuticals ("Spectrum") and Sphaera Pharma, respectively. Spectrum conducted a Phase 1 clinical trial with Oxylanthanum Carbonate in 2012, prior to the grant of our license in 2018. Sphaera conceived and performed initial characterization of various potential pro-drug linkers, including the initial patent application. As discussed herein, after completing IND enabling preclinical studies, we have completed a Phase I clinical study in healthy volunteers with UNI-494 in 2024.

Chronic kidney disease (CKD) is the gradual loss of kidney (renal) function that can get worse over time leading to lasting damage and possibly Stage 5 or end-stage renal disease (ESRD). CKD affects nearly 36 million Americans; approximately 550,000 of them have end stage renal disease and require dialysis. Hyperphosphatemia is common in people with CKD and has been directly linked to increased morbidity and mortality for people on dialysis. For an estimated 75% of people in the U.S. on dialysis, hyperphosphatemia remains uncontrolled due to challenges with the six currently available phosphate binders, namely insufficient potency, pill burden and unpalatable formulations. To address this significant and growing challenge, Unicycive is developing Oxylanthanum Carbonate, which leverages proprietary nanoparticle technology to address the shortcomings of current therapies by delivering higher potency that enables fewer and smaller pills — all in a formulation that is more acceptable for patients because it is swallowed, not chewed. With OLC, if approved, people on dialysis and their physicians may have a better option to control hyperphosphatemia.

AKI is a sudden episode of kidney failure or kidney damage (within the first 90 days of injury). After 90 days, the patient is considered to have progressed into CKD. AKI affects more than 2 million U.S. patients and costs the healthcare system in excess of \$9 billion per year. More than 300,000 patients per year in the U.S. die due to AKI. Currently there are no FDA approved medicines to treat DGF and/or AKI. Treatment options for AKI include continuous renal replacement therapy, renal transplant, and dialysis. In most cases the damage to the kidney is irreversible, and the patient needs to have a renal transplant or be on dialysis for life. Therefore, there is a high unmet medical need. If approved, UNI-494 has the potential to be a first-in-class drug for the treatment of AKI.

Our business model is to license technologies and drugs and pursue development, regulatory approval, and commercialization of those products in global markets. Many biotechnology companies utilize similar strategies of in-licensing and then developing and commercializing drugs. We believe, however, that our management team's broad network, expertise in the biopharmaceutical industry, and successful track record gives us an advantage in identifying and bringing these assets into the Company at an attractive price with limited upfront cost.

Since our formation we have devoted substantially all of our resources to developing our product candidates. We have incurred significant operating losses to date. Our net loss was \$20.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and we had net income of 0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025. As of March 31, 2025, we had an accumulated deficit of \$100.7 million. We expect that our operating expenses will increase significantly as we advance our product candidates through pre-clinical and clinical development, seek regulatory approval, and prepare for and, if approved, proceed to commercialization; acquire, discover, validate and develop additional product candidates; obtain, maintain, protect and enforce our intellectual property portfolio; and hire additional personnel.

We have funded our operations primarily from the sale and issuance of common and preferred stock, convertible promissory notes and from a loan, including cash and deferred salary from our Chief Executive Officer and principal stockholder.

Our ability to generate product revenue will depend on the successful development, regulatory approval and eventual commercialization of our current product candidates and future product candidates. Until such time as we can generate significant revenue from product sales, if ever, we expect to finance our operations through private or public equity or debt financings, collaborative or other arrangements with corporate sources, or through other sources of financing. Adequate funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we fail to raise capital or enter into agreements to raise capital as and when needed, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue the development and commercialization of our current product candidates and future product candidates.

We plan to continue to use third-party service providers, including contract manufacturing organizations, to carry out our pre-clinical and clinical development and to manufacture and supply the materials to be used during the development and commercialization of our product candidates.

Recent Developments

Extension of Nasdaq Compliance Period

On July 9, 2024, we received written notice (the "Notice") from the Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC ("Nasdaq") indicating that the bid price of our common stock, for the last 30 consecutive business days, had closed below the minimum \$1.00 per share and, as a result we were not in compliance with the \$1.00 minimum bid price requirement for the continued listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market, as set forth in Nasdaq Listing Rule 5550(a)(2).

In accordance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(A), we had a period of 180 calendar days, or until January 6, 2025, to regain compliance with the minimum bid price requirement.

As of January 6, 2025we had not regained compliance with the minimum bid price requirement. On January 7, 2025, Nasdaq notified us that we would have an additional 180 calendar days, or until July 7, 2025, to regain compliance.

Issuance of Common Stock Upon Conversion of Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock

On February 18, 2025, we issued 1,400,000 shares (the "Shares") of common stock, upon conversion of 686.00 shares of our Series A-2 Prime Preferred Stock.

Components of Results of Operations

Research and Development Expenses

Substantially all of our research and development expenses consist of expenses incurred in connection with the development of our product candidates. These expenses include fees paid to third parties to conduct certain research and development activities on our behalf, consulting costs, costs for laboratory supplies, product acquisition and license costs, certain payroll and personnel-related expenses, including salaries and bonuses, employee benefit costs and stock-based compensation expenses for our research and product development employees and allocated overheads, including information technology costs and utilities and expenses for the issuance of shares pursuant to the anti-dilution clause in the purchase of in process research and development technology. We expense both internal and external research and development expenses as they are incurred.

We do not allocate our costs by product candidate, as a significant amount of research and development expenses include internal costs, such as payroll and other personnel expenses, laboratory supplies and allocated overhead, and external costs, such as fees paid to third parties to conduct research and development activities on our behalf, are not tracked by product candidate.

We expect our research and development expenses to increase substantially for at least the next few years, as we seek to initiate additional clinical trials for our product candidates, complete our clinical programs, pursue regulatory approval of our product candidates and prepare for the possible commercialization of such product candidates. Predicting the timing or cost to complete our clinical programs or validation of our commercial manufacturing and supply processes is difficult and delays may occur because of many factors, including factors outside of our control. For example, if the FDA or other regulatory authorities were to require us to conduct clinical trials beyond those that we currently anticipate, we could be required to expend significant additional financial resources and time on the completion of clinical development. Furthermore, we are unable to predict when or if our product candidates will receive regulatory approval with any certainty.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses consist principally of payroll and personnel expenses, including salaries and bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensation expenses, professional fees for legal, consulting, accounting and tax services, including information technology costs and utilities, and other general operating expenses not otherwise classified as research and development expenses.

We anticipate that our general and administrative expenses will increase as a result of increased personnel costs, expanded infrastructure and higher consulting, legal and accounting services costs associated with complying with the applicable stock exchange and the SEC requirements, investor relations costs and director and officer insurance premiums associated with being a public company.

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist of the change in fair value of our warrant liability, interest income and interest expense.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 and 2025

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the periods indicated (in thousands):

	Three Mont March			%
	2024	2025	Change	Change
	(unaudited)	(unaudited)		
Operating expenses:				
Research and development	6,813	2,171	(4,642)	(68)%
General and administrative	2,391	5,818	3,427	143%
Total operating expenses	9,204	7,989	(1,215)	(13)%
Loss from operations	(9,204)	(7,989)	(1,215)	(13)%
Other income (expenses):				
Interest income	69	226	157	228%
Interest expense	(20)	(15)	5	(25)%
Change in fair value of warrant liability	(11,808)	8,348	20,156	(171)%
Total other income (expenses)	(11,759)	8,559	20,318	(173)%
Net (loss) income	\$ (20,963)	\$ 570	\$ 21,533	(103)%

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses decreased by approximately \$4.6 million, or 68%, from approximately \$6.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, to approximately \$2.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025. The decrease in research and development expenses was primarily due to a \$5.0 million reduction in drug development costs which was partially offset by an increase in labor costs of \$151,000 over the prior period. Consulting and other costs increased \$189,000 and stock compensation of \$36,000.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by \$3.4 million, or 143%, from approximately \$2.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, to approximately \$5.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025 primarily due to an increase of \$1.4 million in consulting and professional services expenses related to preparation of our commercial launch. Other professional services increased \$1.3 million from the prior period. Labor costs increased \$467,000 from the prior period. Travel, rent, and other costs increased \$230,000. Non-cash stock compensation costs increased \$6,000.

Other Income (Expenses)

Other income (expenses) increased \$20.3 million, or 173%, from \$11.8 million expense in the three months ended March 31, 2024 to \$8.6 million income for the three months ended March 31, 2025 primarily due to a change in fair value of our warrant liability. Interest income increased approximately \$157,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2025 versus the comparable prior period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Since our formation through June 31, 2020, we funded our operations with the sale of common and preferred stock, convertible notes and from a loan from our Chief Executive Officer and principal stockholder.

As a result of our initial public offering ("IPO"), on July 13, 2021 we began trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol "UNCY", and on July 15, 2021 we received approximately \$22.3 million in net proceeds after deducting the underwriting discounts, commissions and offering expenses. We have used the net proceeds from the IPO to complete pre-clinical and clinical studies, submit regulatory filings to the FDA, and for general and corporate purposes, including hiring additional management and conducting market research and other commercial planning.

Future revenue streams may consist of collaboration or licensing revenue as well as product sales. We have generated approximately \$1.6 million in licensing revenue to date.

On March 3, 2023, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain healthcare-focused institutional investors that may provide up to \$130.0 million in gross proceeds through a private placement and that included initial upfront funding of \$28.0 million in net proceeds.

On March 13, 2024, we entered into a securities purchase agreement with certain accredited investors to provide \$50 million in gross proceeds through a private placement. Pursuant to the securities purchase agreement, we issued institutional purchasers \$50.0 million in shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. We received \$46.2 million in net proceeds.

On November 13, 2024, we entered into a sales agreement, with Guggenheim Securities, LLC pursuant to which, we may offer and sell shares of common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$50.0 million, subject to certain limitations and in accordance with the terms of the sales agreement, from time to time through or to Guggenheim Securities, acting as sales agent or principal. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the Company sold 4,507,379 shares of common stock at an average price of \$0.62 per share and paid \$84,000 in commissions, resulting in net proceeds to the Company of approximately \$2.7 million.

Future Funding Requirements

We have incurred net losses since our inception. For the three months ended March 31, 2025, we had net income of \$0.6 million. However, the net income was a result of the change in the fair value of the warrant liability. We expect to incur substantial losses in future periods. As of March 31, 2025, we had an accumulated deficit of \$100.7 million.

We expect to continue incurring losses in the future and will be required to raise additional capital in the future to complete our clinical trials, pursue product development initiatives and penetrate markets for the sale of our products. We believe that we will continue to have access to capital resources through possible equity offerings, debt financings, corporate collaborations or other means. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain additional financing on terms acceptable to us, on a timely basis or at all. If we are unable to secure additional capital, we may be required to curtail any clinical trials and development of new or existing products and take additional measures to reduce expenses in order to conserve our cash in amounts sufficient to sustain operations and meet our obligations. Based on our currently anticipated level of expenditures, we believe that current available cash will not be sufficient to fund planned expenditures and meet obligations through the end of the first quarter of 2026, and there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that these financial statements are available to be issued.

We anticipate that we will need to raise substantial additional capital, the requirements for which will depend on many factors, including:

- the scope, timing, rate of progress and costs of our drug discovery efforts, pre-clinical development activities, laboratory testing and clinical trials for our current product candidates and future product candidates;
- the number and scope of clinical programs we decide to pursue;
- the cost, timing and outcome of preparing for and undergoing regulatory review of our current product candidates and future product candidates;
- the scope and costs of development and commercial manufacturing activities;
- the cost and timing associated with commercializing our current product candidates and future product candidates, if they receive marketing approval;
- the extent to which we acquire or in-license other product candidates and technologies;
- the costs of preparing, filing and prosecuting patent applications, maintaining and enforcing our intellectual property rights and defending intellectual property-related claims;
- our ability to establish and maintain collaborations on favorable terms, if at all;
- our efforts to enhance operational systems and our ability to attract, hire and retain qualified personnel, including personnel to support the development of our current product candidates and future product candidates and, ultimately, the sale of our products, following FDA approval;
- the impact, if any, of the coronavirus pandemic on our business operations;
- our ability to access capital;
- · our implementation of operational, financial and management systems; and
- the costs associated with being a public company.

A change in the outcome of any of these or other variables with respect to the development of any of our current product candidates or future product candidates could significantly change the costs and timing associated with the development of that product candidate. Furthermore, our operating plans may change in the future, and we will continue to require additional capital to meet operational needs and capital requirements associated with such operating plans. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders may experience dilution. Any future debt financing into which we enter may impose upon us additional covenants that restrict our operations, including limitations on our ability to incur liens or additional debt, pay dividends, repurchase our common stock, make certain investments or engage in certain merger, consolidation or asset sale transactions. Any debt financing or additional equity that we raise may contain terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders.

Adequate funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. Our failure to raise capital as and when needed could have a negative impact on our financial condition and our ability to pursue our business strategies. If we are unable to raise additional funds when needed, we may be required to delay, reduce, or terminate some or all of our development programs and clinical trials or we may also be required to sell or license to others rights to our product candidates in certain territories or indications that we would prefer to develop and commercialize ourselves. If we are required to enter into collaborations and other arrangements to supplement our funds, we may have to give up certain rights that limit our ability to develop and commercialize our product candidates or may have other terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders, which could materially affect our business and financial condition.

Summary of Cash Flows

The following table sets forth the primary sources and uses of cash for each of the periods presented below (in thousands):

	March 31,			ed
	2024 (unaudited)			
Net cash (used in) provided by:				
Operating activities	\$	(6,456)	\$	(8,903)
Investing activities		(6)		(16)
Financing activities		45,691		2,546
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	\$	39,229	\$	(6,373)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was \$8.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2025. Cash used in operating activities was primarily due to the use of funds for development costs associated with our drug candidates, labor costs, consulting services, and other corporate expenditures for investor relations, compliance, and legal services.

Net cash used in operating activities was \$6.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. Cash used in operating activities was primarily due to the use of funds for development costs associated with our drug candidates, labor costs, consulting services, and other corporate expenditures for investor relations, compliance, and legal services.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was \$16,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2025 and was due to the purchase of furniture and fixtures for our corporate office.

Net cash used in investing activities was \$6,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and was due to the purchase of furniture and fixtures for our corporate office.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was \$2.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2025 due primarily to the at the market public offering agreement we signed on November 13, 2024.

Net cash provided by financing activities was \$45.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2024 due primarily to the private placement financing agreement we signed on March 13, 2024.

Critical Accounting Policies, Significant Judgments and Use of Estimates

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported expenses incurred during the reporting periods. Our estimates are based on our historical experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We consider our critical accounting policies and estimates to be related to revenue, research and development, stock-based compensation, debt and equity classification and warrant liabilities. There have been no other material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates during the three months ended March 31, 2025, from those used for the year ended December 31, 2024. The policies below represent our critical accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

We apply ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, for our revenue recognition guidance. This includes the development of new policies based on the five-step model provided in the revenue standard, ongoing contract review requirements, and gathering of information provided for disclosures. We recognize revenue from product sales or services rendered when control of the promised goods is transferred to a counterparty in an amount that reflects the consideration to which we expect to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. To achieve this core principle, we apply the following five steps: identify the contract with the client, identify the performance obligations in the contract, determine the transaction price, allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract and recognize revenues when or as we satisfy a performance obligation.

Debt and Equity Classification

In conjunction with the issuance of Series A-1 Preferred Stock in March 2023, and in conjunction with the issuance of Series B-1 Preferred Stock in March 2024, we initially account for the preferred stock as temporary, or mezzanine, equity. The Series A-1 and Series B-1 Preferred Stock do not fall within the scope of ASC 480, *Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity*, do not contain any embedded derivatives that require bifurcation, and are not classified as liabilities. However, as the Series A-1 and Series B-1 Preferred Stock, at issuance, are contingently redeemable upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within our control, they are required to be initially classified as mezzanine equity and measured at the amount of net proceeds received. As the Series A-1 and Series B-1 Preferred Stock are not currently redeemable or probable of becoming redeemable, no subsequent remeasurement is required.

Warrant Liabilities

In conjunction with the issuance of Series A-1 Preferred Stock (see Note 8), we established a warrant liability as of March 3, 2023, representing the fair value of warrants that may be issued, subject to shareholder approval, upon conversion of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock. We account for these warrants as liabilities (in accordance with ASC 480) on the balance sheets as a result of certain redemption clauses that are not within the control of the Company. The warrant liabilities are initially measured at fair value, resulting in an implied discount on the related preferred stock financing arrangement (recognized as a partial offset to the carrying value of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock), and are remeasured at fair value each reporting period. Changes in the fair value of the warrant liabilities are recognized in earnings during each period. The warrant liabilities are measured using Level 3 fair value inputs. See Note 10 for a description of warrant liabilities and the related valuations.

Research and Development

We expense costs when incurred related to the research and development associated with the design, development and testing of product candidates, as well as acquisition of product candidates or compounds. Research and development expenses include fees paid to third parties to conduct certain research and development activities on our behalf, consulting costs, costs for laboratory supplies, product acquisition and license costs, certain payroll and personnel-related expenses, including salaries and bonuses, employee benefit costs and stock-based compensation expenses for our research and product development employees and allocated overheads, including information technology costs and utilities and expenses for issuance of shares pursuant to anti-dilution clause in the purchase of IPR&D technology. We expense both internal and external research and development expenses as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation for all share-based payments made to employees and non-employees by estimating the fair value on the date of grant and recognizing compensation expense over the requisite service period on a straight-line basis. We recognize forfeitures related to stock-based compensation as they occur. We estimate the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The Black-Scholes model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including expected common stock volatility, expected dividend yield, expected term, and the risk-free interest rate.

JOBS Act Accounting Election

On April 5, 2012, the JOBS Act was enacted. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that an "emerging growth company" can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an "emerging growth company" can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies.

We have chosen to take advantage of the extended transition periods available to emerging growth companies under the JOBS Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies provided under the JOBS Act. As a result, our financial statements may not be comparable to those of companies that comply with public company effective dates for complying with new or revised accounting standards.

Subject to certain conditions set forth in the JOBS Act, as an "emerging growth company," we intend to rely on certain of these exemptions, including, without limitation, (i) providing an auditor's attestation report on our internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and (ii) complying with the requirement adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") regarding the communication of critical audit matters in the auditor's report on financial statements. We will remain an "emerging growth company" until the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenues of \$1.235 billion or more; (ii) the last day of our fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the date of the completion of our initial public offering; (iii) the date on which we have issued more than \$1 billion in nonconvertible debt during the previous three years; or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer under the rules of the SEC.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See the section titled "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—Recent Accounting Pronouncements" in Note 2 to our financial statements included elsewhere in this quarterly report for additional information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have during the periods presented, and we do not currently have, any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined under SEC rules.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information required by this item.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based upon this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer each concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information has been accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, in a manner that allows timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings and we are not aware of any pending or threatened legal proceeding against us that we believe could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, cash flows or financial condition. We may periodically be the subject of various pending or threatened legal actions and claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business. Regardless of the outcome, such proceedings or claims can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of resources and other factors, and there can be no assurances that favorable outcomes will be obtained. In the opinion of management, adequate provision has been made in our financial statements at March 31, 2025 with respect to such matters.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Not applicable

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

Not applicable.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.	Description
31.1	Certification of Principal Executive Officer required under Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act.
31.2	Certification of Principal Financial Officer required under Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) under the Exchange Act.
32.1	Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2	Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS	Inline XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 14th day of May, 2025.

Signature	Title	Date
/s/ Shalabh Gupta Shalabh Gupta	Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman (Principal Executive Officer)	May 14, 2025
/s/ John Townsend John Townsend	Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)	May 14, 2025
	39	

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Shalabh Gupta, M.D., certify that:

- (1) I have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Unicycive Therapeutics, Inc.;
- (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- (3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- (4) The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- (5) The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 14, 2025 By: /s/ Shalabh Gupta, M.D.

Shalabh Gupta, M.D. Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John Townsend, certify that:

- (1) I have reviewed this Form 10-Q of Unicycive Therapeutics, Inc.;
- (2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- (3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- (4) The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- (5) The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 14, 2025 By: /s/ John Townsend

John Townsend Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Unicycive Therapeutics, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the three month period ended March 31, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 14, 2025 (the "Report"), I, Shalabh Gupta, M.D., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
- 2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of, and for the periods presented in the Report.

By: /s/ Shalabh Gupta, M.D.

Shalabh Gupta, M.D. Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Unicycive Therapeutics, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the three month period ended March 31, 2025, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 14, 2025 (the "Report"), I, John Townsend, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- 1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
- The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as of, and for the periods presented in the Report.

By: /s/ John Townsend

John Townsend Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.